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M E M O  

Police Department 

DATE: March 21, 2019 

TO: David Murray 

Principal Planner 

FROM:  Jeffrey L. Greer 

Deputy Chief, Operations 

RE: Planning Case P18-0572 

Minor Conditional Use Permit 

3700 Main Street  North NPC 

The Riverside Police Department (RPD) is submitting this supplemental memorandum to 

the City of Riverside’s Planning Department regarding the modification to the 

Hideaway Café’s Minor Conditional Use Permit (MCUP) operation located at 3700 Main 

Street in the City and County of Riverside. 

The purpose of this memorandum is to update the Planning Department regarding 

activities at the Hideaway Café.   In the Hideaway Café’s current MCUP (P16-0251), 

one of their conditions states the following:   

“Entertainment shall be limited to Wednesday through Saturday. Modifications may be 

permitted to “switch” a day of the week on a temporary basis if the request is submitted 

a minimum of 30 days prior to the event and approved by the Planning Division and 

Police Department.” 

Entertainment Activities 

On Sunday, March 10, 2019, Sergeant Chad Collopy noticed that Hideaway Café had 

posted an advertisement on their Instagram account, advertising entertainment for 

later in the evening.  The advertisement is included below.  Sergeant Collopy 

contacted Sergeant Bill Zackowski, who was working patrol, to see if he could conduct 

a bar check to confirm whether or not the Hideaway Café was having entertainment 

as advertised.   At approximately 2351 hours, Sergeant Zackowski conducted a walk-

through of the establishment.   Sergeant Zackowski noted there were approximately 10 

patrons inside the establishment, with a “DJ” performing.  RPD and the Planning 

Department never received a request from Hideaway Café to have entertainment 

activities on this date. The incident was documented under RPD report #190007861. 
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https://www.instagram.com/p/Bu2aRpyl5Zt/ 

On Friday, March 15, 2019, Sergeant Collopy noticed that Hideaway Café had posted 

two advertisements on their Instagram account advertising entertainment for March 17, 

2019.  The advertisements are included below.  Sergeant Collopy contacted Sergeant 

Andrew Leyva, who was working patrol, to see if officers could conduct a bar check on 

March 17, 2019 to confirm whether or not the Hideaway Café was having 

entertainment as advertised. At approximately 2000 hours, Sergeant Leyva and officers 

conducted a walk-through of the establishment.   Sergeant Leyva later reported that 

there were approximately 20 patrons inside the establishment, with a guitarist 

performing.     

On March 19, 2019, Sergeant Collopy noticed that Hideaway Café had posted the 

Facebook advertisements included below, dated on March 14, 2019, advertising 

entertainment for March 17, 2019.   The advertisement and posting states, “Join us early 

evening at 6 pm St Patrick's Day for live music followed by djs and dancing at 9 pm1.”  

Sergeant Collopy was unable to confirm whether the entertainment activities at “9pm” 

occurred due to officers being unable to conduct a bar check during this time.  The 

Police and Planning Department never received a request from the Hideaway Café to 

have entertainment activities on March 17.  The incident was documented under RPD 

report #190008711. 

https://www.instagram.com/p/Bu2aRpyl5Zt/
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https://www.instagram.com/p/Bu68ZNvliqb/ 

https://www.instagram.com/p/BuzkemuFoUE/ 

https://www.instagram.com/p/Bu68ZNvliqb/
https://www.instagram.com/p/BuzkemuFoUE/


Exhibit 8 - Riverside Police Department March 21, 2019 Memorandum 4 of 4 

https://www.facebook.com/Thehideawaydtr/ 

JLG: cc 

https://www.facebook.com/Thehideawaydtr/

